

1983 Senate Bill 151

Date of enactment: **April 20, 1984**
Date of publication: **April 26, 1984**

1983 Wisconsin Act 219

AN ACT to repeal 32.05 (13), 32.06 (13), 66.05 (8) (c), 88.09 (2), 117.03 (5), 808.04 (2) (a), 879.27 (3) and 971.08 (2); to renumber 808.04 (2) (b) and (c); to renumber and amend 808.07 (7); to amend 9.10 (4) (a), 30.30 (3) (c), 48.43 (6), 48.47 (1), 48.911, 51.20 (15), 62.075 (4), 62.50 (21), 66.014 (7) (b), 66.021 (10) (b), 66.05 (2) (b) and (3), 66.435 (4) (b), 70.47 (13) and (16) (a), 70.85 (1), 74.11 (5), 78.72, 87.16, 102.25 (1), 103.59, 128.15 (1), 128.20 (2), 186.29 (5), 215.32 (12) (b) and (d), 227.21, 227.25, 227.26, 779.29, 779.30, 805.15 (6), 944.25 (8) (c), 974.02 (title) and (1) and 974.05 (1) (intro.); to repeal and recreate 879.31; and to create 55.06 (18) and 808.04 (2) to (4) of the statutes, relating to time limits for commencing appeals and preferential treatment of certain actions.

The people of the state of Wisconsin, represented in senate and assembly, do enact as follows:

PREFATORY NOTE: This bill was developed by the judicial council for the purposes of standardizing, clarifying and simplifying the statutory deadlines for appealing from circuit court judgments and orders to the court of appeals.

Generally, appeals in civil cases must be initiated within 90 days after the circuit court's written judgment or order is "entered", i.e., filed in the office of the clerk of court. See s. 808.04 (1), stats. The prevailing party can reduce the appeal time to 45 days by providing notice of entry of the judgment or order within 21 days after that occurs. See ss. 806.06 (5) and 808.04 (1), stats.

The present appeal deadline was established when the court of appeals was created by laws of 1977, chapter 187. Between 1936 and 1978, the general deadline for appeals from circuit court was 6 months after entry of judgment, or 3 months if notice of entry was given. See s. 817.01 (1), 1975 stats. This period was in turn much shorter than the one-year limit which governed civil appeals between 1848 and 1936. See laws of 1935, chapter 541.

During the period when the time limit for appeals was substantially longer than it is now, numerous statutory exceptions were created for the purpose of expediting the final resolution of certain controversies. Litigation concerning municipal incorporation, annexation and condemnation, drainage and flood control, school district reorganizations, evictions and worker's compensation awards are among the many exceptions which have accumulated over the years and are now referenced in s. 808.04 (2) (a), stats.

The judicial council carefully reviewed the origin, history and purpose of each of these exceptions and concluded that most of them are no longer justified nor needed in view of the comparatively short general appeal deadline of s. 808.04 (1), stats. Rather, the exceptions are often confusing and present traps for any person who does not frequently appear in the appellate courts.

The council further concluded that the desirability of having one appeal time is pronounced because the court of appeals obtains jurisdiction over an appeal only if a notice of appeal is timely filed and, in civil cases, the appellate court has no authority to waive or extend the time period absent a specific grant of authority by statute. Accordingly, most of the present exceptions destroy the uniformity and certainty which should accompany jurisdictional requirements.

This bill, therefore, repeals most of the exceptions, retaining only those few exceptions for cases having particular exigencies or involving right to counsel or addressing appeals by the state. The standard appeal time of s. 808.04 (1), stats., would uniformly govern all appeals with only the following limited exceptions: recall and eviction cases as well as cases in which the validity of a state law is attacked in federal district court would have an expedited appeal time deadline of 15 days from entry of judgment or order; criminal appeals by a defendant and appeals by a defendant, interested person, juvenile or subject individual under the children's code (except adoptions), ch. 48, stats., the mental health act, ch. 51, stats., and the protective placement act, ch. 55, stats., would continue to be governed by s. 809.30, stats.; and appeals by the state in a criminal case under s. 974.05, stats., or a case under the children's code (except adoptions), ch. 48, stats., would have an appeal time deadline of 45 days from entry of judgment or order. Approximately 26 exceptions would be repealed.

SECTION 1. 9.10 (4) (a) of the statutes is amended to read:

9.10 (4) (a) For the recall of any city, village, town or school district official, the municipal clerk shall verify the eligibility of the respective signers and circulators, shall certify thereto and shall transmit the petition to the clerk of circuit court within 10 days of the filing date. The circuit court within 10 days after receipt of the petition shall determine by hearing whether the petition states good and sufficient reason for the recall. The clerk of circuit court shall notify the incumbent of the hearing date. The person subject to recall and the petition circulators may appear by counsel and the court may take testimony with respect to the recall petition. If the circuit court judge determines the

grounds stated in the petition and proof offered at the hearing show good and sufficient reasons for recall, the judge shall issue a certificate directing the governing body or school board to hold an election under this section. If the grounds stated in the petition and proof offered at the hearing do not show good and sufficient reason for recall, issuance of the certificate shall be denied. Any party aggrieved by the circuit court determination may appeal to the court of appeals within ~~10 days following the circuit court determination by filing a notice of appeal with the clerk of the court of appeals~~ the time period specified in s. 808.04 (2). An appeal under this section shall ~~have been given preference on the court of appeals calendar~~. The appeal shall stay enforcement of a certificate issued by the circuit court until the court of appeals determines the appeal. The governing body or school board upon receiving the certificate from the circuit court shall call a special election not less than 50 nor more than 60 days from the date of the certificate. The special election for recall of more than one official may be held on the same day.

NOTE: Section 9.10 (4) (a), stats., is amended to eliminate the requirement that the notice of appeal be filed with the clerk of the court of appeals. The notice of appeal must be filed with the clerk of circuit court under s. 809.10, stats. The appeal deadline of 10 days after the circuit court's determination is replaced by the time provisions of s. 808.04 (2), stats., for greater uniformity. Section 808.04 (2), stats., provides that an appeal must be initiated within 15 days after entry of judgment or order appealed from.

SECTION 2. 30.30 (3) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

30.30 (3) (c) ~~In the event~~ If the owners of the property on which ~~such the~~ the dock wall or shore protection wall is located fail to notify the board of harbor commissioners or the local legislative body, ~~as the case may be,~~ within ~~such the~~ the 90-day period that ~~such the~~ the work will be commenced as specified in the resolution, the board of harbor commissioners or the local legislative body shall request the city attorney, district attorney or corporation counsel for the commencement of an action in the circuit court in the county in which ~~such the~~ the property is located for determination of whether or not ~~such the~~ the improvement, alteration, repair or extension of the dock wall or shore protection wall is required and for the fixing of the time by the court within which time the work must be commenced and completed. The action shall be entitled in the name of the state and the municipality, and the attorney general shall participate on behalf of the state. The complaint shall recite the type of improvement, alteration, repair or extension which is required, the approximate cost thereof, the need for such work as related to the reasons stated in par. (b), and such other allegations as may be pertinent. The owners of the property within which ~~such the~~ the dock wall or shore protection wall is located shall be named defendants; ~~they.~~ They shall be permitted to plead as provided for in civil actions. The action shall be brought to trial in the circuit court as promptly as possible. If the circuit court determines that the work shall be performed, it shall make a finding to that effect and enter an order directing the owners of the property to commence the work and to complete it within a period of time fixed by the court in ~~such the~~ the order, or in the alternative provide that the municipality may complete ~~such the~~ the work and charge the cost thereof to the owners of the property. ~~The cost of such~~ If the ~~work in the event it is performed by the municipality, the cost~~ shall be recovered from the owners of the property as special assessments for benefits to lands provided for in s. 66.60. Either party to the action may appeal from the determination of the circuit court ~~within 30 days following the entry of the order. The and the appeal to the court of appeals shall be perfected in the same manner as are other civil actions and shall be given precedence~~ preference. Only such portion of the cost of the work shall be assessed against the owners which is of benefit to their lands.

NOTE: Subsection (3) (c) is amended to replace the appeal deadline of 30 days after entry of the order by the standard time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats. The subsection is further amended to eliminate the superfluous provision that the appeal be perfected in the same manner as other civil appeals. The manner of perfecting civil appeals is established by s. 809.11, stats.

SECTION 3. 32.05 (13) of the statutes is repealed.

NOTE: Section 32.05 (13), stats., provides that either party in an action for condemnation for sewers or transportation facilities under s. 32.05, stats., may appeal to the court of appeals within 6 months after date of notice of entry of circuit court judgment. The 6-month appeal time created by laws of 1959, chapter 639, corresponded with the then general appeal time of 6 months from entry of judgment if no notice of entry was given. The 6-month appeal time is now unnecessarily lengthy compared to the general civil appeal time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats. The provision that the appeal time runs from notice of entry of judgment rather than from the standard provision of entry of judgment is confusing. The subsection is therefore repealed for greater uniformity and certainty. An appeal in a condemnation case must now be initiated within 45 days of entry of judgment or order appealed from if written notice of entry of judgment or order is given, or within 90 days of entry if notice is not given, as specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 4. 32.06 (13) of the statutes is repealed.

NOTE: Section 32.06 (13), stats., provides that either party in an action for condemnation under s. 32.06, stats., may appeal to the court of appeals within 6 months after the date of notice of entry of circuit court judgment. For the reasons set forth in the NOTE to s. 32.05 (13), stats., the subsection is repealed.

SECTION 5. 48.43 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.43 (6) Judgments under this subchapter terminating parental rights are final and appealable under s. 48.47, ~~except that appeal shall be taken within 30 days of the date the order is entered.~~

NOTE: Section 48.43 (6), stats., is amended to eliminate the appeal deadline of 30 days after entry of order so that the appeal time deadline is that specified in s. 48.47, stats.

SECTION 6. 48.47 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

48.47 (1) Any person aggrieved by ~~an adjudication~~ a final judgment or final order of the court under this chapter ~~and directly affected thereby has the right to appeal to the court of appeals in accordance with s. 809.40. Appeal from an order granting or denying an adoption under s. 48.91 and from any circuit court review under s. 48.64 (4) (c) shall be to the court of appeals~~ may appeal within the time period specified in s. 808.04 (3) or (4).

NOTE: Section 48.47 (1), stats., is amended to harmonize the right to appeal language with s. 808.03 (1), stats., which provides that only a final judgment or final order is appealable as of right, and to clarify that the time to appeal is specified in s. 808.04 (3) and (4), stats. The last sentence of sub. (1) is repealed as surplusage. Appeals are to the court of appeals as provided in chs. 752, 808 and 809, stats.

SECTION 7. 48.911 of the statutes is amended to read:

48.911 Appeal in adoption proceedings. ~~Notwithstanding the provisions of chs. 808, 809 and 879, any~~ An appeal from an a final judgment or final order in an adoption proceeding is limited to 40 days from the date of the entry of the order shall be taken within the time period specified in s. 808.04 (1).

NOTE: This section is amended to replace the appeal deadline of 40 days after entry of order by the standard time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats., for greater uniformity.

SECTION 8. 51.20 (15) of the statutes is amended to read:

51.20 (15) APPEAL. An appeal may be taken to the court of appeals within the time period specified in s. 808.04 (3) in accordance with s. 809.40 by the subject of the petition or the individual's guardian, by any petitioner or by the representative of the public.

NOTE: Section 51.20 (15), stats., is amended to clarify that the time to appeal is specified in s. 808.04 (3), stats., while procedural requirements are specified in s. 809.40, stats.

SECTION 9. 55.06 (18) of the statutes is created to read:

55.06 (18) An appeal may be taken to the court of appeals from a final judgment or final order under this section within the time period specified in s. 808.04 (3) and in accordance with s. 809.40 by the subject of the petition or the individual's guardian, by any petitioner or by the representative of the public.

NOTE: Section 55.06 (18), stats., is created to establish that the time to appeal from a final judgment or final order under this section is specified in s. 808.04 (3), stats. Previously, the time for appeals for ch. 55 cases was specified in s. 974.02 (1), stats., which is within the criminal procedure code. No substantive change has been made.

SECTION 10. 62.075 (4) of the statutes is amended to read:

62.075 (4) (title) OBJECTIONS; DECISIONS. The city, town or towns, owners of land in the vicinity, or owners of any interest therein, if opposed to the proceedings, shall, at least 15 days before the time of hearing fixed by the order, file in the office of the clerk of circuit court and serve on the petitioners their verified objections to the granting of the prayer of the petition, specifying the grounds of objections thereto. The proceedings may be adjourned or continued for cause. The issue raised by the petition shall be tried by the circuit court upon the evidence submitted by the petitioners and objectors; and witnesses shall be compelled to appear and testify as in other cases in circuit court and the rules of evidence, practice and procedure shall be the same. The circuit court may render judgment ~~in accordance with~~ under subs. (1) and (2), detaching from the city and annexing to the town or towns the area, if the facts required by the subsections are proved by a preponderance of the evidence. If the facts are not so proved, the petition shall be dismissed. In the event of a contest, costs may be awarded to the successful party. ~~Any person aggrieved by the final judgment may appeal to the court of appeals from the judgment within 6 months after service of notice of entry thereof in the manner provided by chs. 808 and 809.~~

NOTE: The last sentence of s. 62.075 (4), stats., providing an appeal deadline of 6 months after service of notice of entry of judgment is repealed for greater uniformity. An appeal must now be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 11. 62.50 (21) of the statutes is amended to read:

62.50 (21) CERTIFICATION AND RETURN OF RECORD; HEARING. Upon the service of the demand under sub. (20), the board upon which ~~such~~ the service is made shall within 5 days thereafter certify to the clerk of the circuit court of the county all charges, testimony, and everything relative to the trial and discharge, suspension or reduction in rank of the member. Upon the filing of the return with the clerk of court, actions for review shall be ~~deemed at issue and shall have precedence over any other cause of a different nature pending in such court, and such court shall be considered always open for the trial thereof given preference.~~ Upon application of the discharged member or the board, the court shall fix a date for the trial which shall be no later than 15 days after the date of

~~such~~ the application except upon agreement between the board and the discharged or suspended member. ~~Such~~ The action shall be tried by the court without a jury and shall be tried upon the return made by the board. In determining the question of fact presented, the court shall be limited in the review thereof to the question: "Under the evidence was the decision of the board reasonable?" The court may require additional return to be made by the board, and may also require the board to take additional testimony and make return thereof.

NOTE: The provision in s. 62.50 (21), stats., regarding preferential court treatment is harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 12. 66.014 (7) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.014 (7) (b) ~~Any An~~ action contesting an incorporation shall be ~~placed at the head of given preference in the circuit court calendar for an early hearing and determination. The time within which a writ of error may be issued or an appeal taken to obtain review by the court of appeals of any judgment or order in any action or proceeding contesting an incorporation is limited to 30 days from the date of the filing of such judgment or order.~~

NOTE: The last sentence of s. 66.014 (7) (b), stats., providing an appeal deadline of 30 days from the filing of the judgment or order, is repealed for greater uniformity. An appeal must now be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats. The provision requiring preferential court treatment is harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 13. 66.021 (10) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.021 (10) (b) ~~Any An~~ action contesting an annexation ~~except actions pending on November 17, 1957 shall be placed at the head of given preference in the circuit court calendar for an early hearing. The time within which a writ of error may be issued or an appeal taken to obtain review by the court of appeals of any judgment or order in any action or proceeding contesting an annexation is limited to 30 days from the date of notice of the entry of such judgment or order.~~

NOTE: The 2nd sentence of s. 66.021 (10) (b), stats., providing an appeal deadline of 30 days from notice of entry of judgment or order, is repealed for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats. The provision requiring preferential court treatment is harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 14. 66.05 (2) (b) and (3) of the statutes are amended to read:

66.05 (2) (b) Any municipality, inspector of buildings or designated officer may, in his, ~~her or its~~ official capacity, commence and prosecute an action in circuit court for an order of the court requiring the owner to comply with an order to raze or remove any building or part thereof issued under this section if the owner fails or refuses to do so within the time prescribed in ~~such~~ the order, or for an order of the court requiring any person occupying a building whose occupancy has been prohibited under this section to vacate the premises, or any combination of ~~such~~ the court orders. Hearing on such actions shall be given ~~precedence over other matters on the court's calendar~~ preference. Costs shall be in the discretion of the court.

(3) Anyone affected by any such order shall within the time provided by s. 893.76 apply to the circuit court for an order restraining the inspector of buildings or other designated officer from razing and removing the building or part thereof or forever be barred. ~~Hearing~~ The hearing shall be ~~had~~ held within 20 days and shall be given ~~precedence over other matters on the court's calendar~~ preference. The court shall determine whether the order of the inspector of buildings is reasonable, and if found reasonable the court shall dissolve the restraining order, and if found not reasonable the court shall

continue the restraining order or modify it as the circumstances require. Costs shall be in the discretion of the court. If the court finds that the order of the inspector of buildings is unreasonable, the inspector of buildings or other designated officer shall issue no other order pursuant to the authority of under this section in regard to the same building or part thereof until its condition is substantially changed. The remedies provided in this subsection are exclusive remedies and anyone affected by such an order of the inspector shall not be entitled to recover any damages for the razing and removal of any such building.

NOTE: Provisions in s. 66.05 (2) (b) and (3), stats., regarding preferential court treatment are harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 15. 66.05 (8) (c) of the statutes is repealed.

NOTE: Section 66.05 (8) (c), stats., providing an appeal deadline of 30 days from entry of order, is repealed for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 16. 66.435 (4) (b) of the statutes is amended to read:

66.435 (4) (b) Any person ~~feeling~~ aggrieved by the determination of any board, commission or commissioner of health, following review of an order issued by officers and employes of a municipality under this section may appeal directly to the circuit court of the county in which the dwelling or other structure is located by filing a petition for review with the clerk of the circuit court within 30 days after a copy of the order of the board, commission or commissioner of health has been served upon the person. The petition shall state the substance of the order appealed from and the grounds upon which the person believes the order to be improper. A copy of the petition shall be served upon the board, commission or commissioner of health whose determination is being appealed. The copy shall be served personally or by registered or certified mail within the 30-day period provided in this paragraph. A reply or answer shall be filed by the board, commission or commissioner of health within 15 days from the receipt of the petition. A copy of the written proceedings of the hearing held by the board, commission or commissioner of health which led to service of the order being appealed, shall be included with the reply or answer when filed. If it appears to the court that the petition is filed for purposes of delay, it shall, upon application of the municipality, promptly dismiss the petition. Either party to the proceedings may then petition the court for an immediate hearing on the order. The court shall review the order, the copy of written proceedings of the hearing conducted by the board, commission or commissioner of health and shall take such testimony as in its judgment may be appropriate, and following a hearing upon the order without a jury, the court shall make its determination. If the court affirms the determination made by the board, commission or commissioner of health, the court shall fix a time within which the order appealed from shall become operative. ~~Either party may appeal from the determination made by the circuit court to the court of appeals within 60 days following the determination of the circuit court, but not thereafter. If the court of appeals or supreme court affirms the order appealed from, the court shall set the time within which the order shall become effective.~~

NOTE: The last 2 sentences of s. 66.435 (4) (b), stats., providing an appeal deadline of 60 days after determination, are repealed for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 17. 70.47 (13) and (16) (a) of the statutes are amended to read:

70.47 (13) CERTIORARI. Except as provided in s. 70.85, appeal from the determination of the board of review shall be by an action for certiorari commenced within 90 days after final adjournment of the board. The action shall be ~~placed at the head of the circuit court calendar for an early hearing given preference.~~ If the court on the appeal finds any error in the proceedings of the board which renders the assessment or the proceedings

void, it shall remand the assessment to the board for further proceedings in accordance with the court's determination and retain jurisdiction of the matter until the board has determined an assessment in accordance with the court's order. For this purpose, if final adjournment of the board occurs prior to the court's decision on the appeal, the court may order the governing body of the assessing authority to reconvene the board.

(16) (a) In 1st class cities all objections to the amount or valuation of real or personal property shall be first made in writing and filed with the tax commissioner on or before the 3rd Monday in May. No person may, in any action or proceeding, question the amount or valuation of real or personal property in the assessment rolls of the city unless objections have been so filed. The board may not waive the requirement that objections be in writing. If the objections have been investigated by a committee of the board of assessors as ~~provided in~~ under s. 70.07 (6), the board of review may adopt the recommendation of the committee ~~unless the objector requests or the board orders a hearing.~~ At least 2 days' notice of the time fixed for the hearing shall be given to the objector or attorney and to the city attorney of the city. The provisions of the statutes relating to boards of review not inconsistent with this subsection apply to proceedings before the boards of review of 1st class cities, except that the board need not adjourn until the assessment roll is completed by the tax commissioner, as required in s. 70.07 (6), but may immediately hold hearings on objections filed with the tax commissioner, and the changes, corrections and determinations made by the board acting within its powers shall be prima facie correct. Appeal from the determination shall be by an action for certiorari commenced within 90 days after final adjournment of the board of review. The action shall be ~~placed at the head of the circuit court calendar for an early hearing given preference.~~

NOTE: Provisions in s. 70.47 (13) and (16) (a), stats., regarding preferential court treatment are harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 18. 70.85 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

70.85 (1) If the department of revenue, on a written complaint filed with the department within 20 days after the adjournment of the board of review for any taxation district, determines that the assessment of one or more descriptions of property in the taxation district, the fair market value of which does not exceed \$1 million as determined by the department of revenue, is radically out of proportion to the general average of the assessment of all other property in the district and the assessment can be satisfactorily corrected without a reassessment of the entire district, the department of revenue may revalue the property and equalize the assessment without the intervention of a board of review, if the revaluation can be accomplished before November 1 of the year in which the assessment is made or within 60 days of the receipt of the written complaint, whichever is later. The valuation so fixed by the department shall be substituted for the original valuation in the assessment and tax rolls and taxes computed and paid on it accordingly. No assessment may be raised except on the written complaint of 3 or more taxpayers and only if the party to whom the property is assessed has been duly notified of the intention in time to appear and be heard before, or file the party's objections with, the department in relation to it. Appeal from the determination of the department shall be by an action for certiorari in the circuit court of the county in which the property is located, which shall be ~~placed at the head of the circuit court calendar for an expedited hearing given preference.~~

NOTE: The provision in s. 70.85 (1), stats., regarding preferential court treatment is harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 19. 74.11 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

74.11 (5) APPEAL AND RETURN. Except as provided in sub. (8), ~~the defendant either party may, within 20 days after the entry of any such judgment the time period specified in s. 808.04 (1), appeal to the court of appeals, by executing and delivering. Prior to filing a notice of appeal, a defendant shall execute and deliver to the circuit court judge an undertaking to the town, city or village, with one or more sureties to be approved by such the judge, conditioned to pay the judgment the court of appeals may render against him or her in the action. Upon receipt of the undertaking the judge shall return it with the examinations and evidence taken by him or her and all other papers and proceedings in the action, duly certified by him or her, to the court of appeals. Except as provided in sub. (8), the plaintiff may also appeal from any such judgment or from any judgment discharging the defendant to the court of appeals. Upon taking such appeal the judge shall make a like return to the court of appeals as upon an appeal by the defendant.~~

NOTE: Section 74.11 (5), stats., is amended to replace the appeal deadline of 20 days after entry of judgment by the standard time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats., for greater uniformity. Language requiring the trial judge to certify the record and specifying its contents is repealed as unnecessary in light of s. 809.15, stats.

SECTION 20. 78.72 of the statutes is amended to read:

78.72 (title) Preference given actions to enforce this chapter. All proceedings and hearings, civil or criminal, arising under this chapter shall have ~~priority in hearing and determination over all other civil proceedings in any court except election contests, criminal and other cases in which the public is the moving party~~ be given preference.

NOTE: The provision regarding preferential court treatment is harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 21. 87.16 of the statutes is amended to read:

87.16 (title) Court proceedings given preference. Any action brought in any court for the purpose of enjoining, preventing or interfering with the construction, repairing, reconstruction, operation or maintenance of the improvement ordered by the department, or any part thereof, except actions to review the orders of the department under ss. 87.01 to 87.17, shall be ~~placed upon the court trial calendar as soon as the action is at issue and shall have precedence over all other actions pending upon the calendar. In addition to all other limitations, the time for appealing from any order or judgment entered in the action shall be limited to 30 days from the date of the entry of the order or judgment. On appeal the cause shall, on the filing of the papers in the court of appeals, be immediately placed at the head of the calendar of the court of appeals and shall be assigned and brought to a hearing in the same manner as other causes on the calendar of the court of appeals given preference in the circuit court. An appeal shall be given preference.~~

NOTE: This section is amended by repealing the appeal deadline of 30 days from entry of the order or judgment for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats. The provisions requiring preferential court treatment are harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 22. 88.09 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

NOTE: Section 88.09 (2), stats., provides that appeals of any final order or judgment in proceedings brought under ch. 88, stats., covering drainage of lands proceedings, are to be initiated within 60 days of entry of the final judgment or order. The appeal time provision established a uniform appeal procedure by eliminating the previous confusing requirements for notice of entry of judgment, by eliminating the previous differential treatment of circuit court and direct supreme court appeals and by extending the previous appeal time of 30 days to 60 days from entry. See laws of 1963, chapter 572. See committee

comment, 1963, 1970 Wis. Annot., 15 WSA 118 (1972). The underlying legislative concerns with uniformity, clarity and sufficient time from entry are now covered by s. 808.04 (1), stats., so that the subsection is presently unnecessary. The subsection is therefore repealed. An appeal in a drainage of lands case must be initiated within the time period specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 23. 102.25 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

102.25 (1) Any party aggrieved by a judgment entered upon the review of any order or award may appeal therefrom within ~~30 days from the date of service by either party upon the other of notice of entry of judgment~~ the time period specified in s. 808.04 (1). A trial court shall not require the commission or any party to the action to execute, serve or file an undertaking under s. 808.07 or to serve, or secure approval of, a transcript of the notes of the stenographic reporter or the tape of the recording machine. ~~All such appeals shall be placed on the calendar of the court of appeals and brought to a hearing in the same manner as state causes on the calendar.~~ The state is deemed a party aggrieved, ~~within the meaning of under~~ this subsection, ~~whenever if~~ a judgment is entered upon ~~such a~~ the review confirming any order or award against it. At any time before the case is set down for hearing in the court of appeals or the supreme court, the parties may have the record remanded by the court to the department in the same manner and for the same purposes as provided for remanding from the circuit court to the department under s. 102.24 (2).

NOTE: Section 102.25 (1), stats., is amended to replace the appeal deadline of 30 days after service of notice of entry of judgment or award by the standard time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats., for greater uniformity. The subsection is further amended to eliminate the superfluous provisions for calendaring and hearing the appeal.

SECTION 24. 103.59 of the statutes is amended to read:

103.59 Injunctions: appeals. ~~Whenever If~~ any court ~~or judge or judges thereof shall issue or deny issues or denies~~ any temporary injunction in a case involving or growing out of a labor dispute, the court shall, upon the request of any party to the proceedings, and on ~~his~~ filing the usual bond for costs, forthwith certify the entire record of the case, including a transcript of the evidence taken, to the appropriate appellate court for its review. Upon the filing of ~~such~~ the record in the appropriate appellate court the appeal shall be heard ~~with the greatest possible expedition, giving the proceeding precedence over all other matters except older matters of the same character given preference.~~

NOTE: The provision regarding preferential court treatment is harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 25. 117.03 (5) of the statutes is repealed.

NOTE: Section 117.03 (5), stats., providing an appeal deadline of 60 days from notice of entry of order in school district reorganization cases, is repealed for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 26. 128.15 (1) of the statutes is amended to read:

128.15 (1) At the expiration of the period of time limited for the filing of claims, the receiver or assignee shall file with the clerk proof of publication of notice and a list of the creditors to whom ~~such~~ the notice was made with the debts thereof respectively verified by ~~his~~ an affidavit, and also a list of claims filed stating the names of creditors, residences and amounts claimed respectively. At any time thereafter the receiver or assignee or, upon ~~his~~ that person's refusal or failure to act, any creditor may file written objections to any claim specifying the grounds thereof and serve a copy thereof in such manner as the court may order upon ~~such~~ the claimant. Depositions may thereafter be taken as in civil actions. The court, on the application of either party, shall fix by order a time when ~~such~~

the objections shall be heard, which shall be served as therein prescribed upon the adverse party. Upon the final hearing the court shall make such order as shall be just and may compel the payment of costs in its discretion. ~~An appeal may be taken from such order within thirty days from the entry thereof, but not afterwards, in the manner provided for taking appeals from orders in civil actions.~~

NOTE: The last sentence of s. 128.15 (1), stats., providing an appeal deadline of 30 days after entry of order, is repealed for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 27. 128.20 (2) of the statutes is amended to read:

128.20 (2) Upon filing such the report the receiver or assignee may apply to the court upon not less than ~~ten~~ 10 days' notice thereof by mail to the respective creditors named ~~therein in the report~~, for a final settlement of such the account, ~~and the~~. The court shall fix a time and place for the hearing of objections or taking of evidence and by order settle and adjust such the accounts and the compensation and expenses of such the receiver or assignee, regardless of whether objection ~~be is~~ made ~~or not and such~~. The order shall be conclusive upon all parties including the sureties of the receiver or assignee, but the receiver or assignee or any creditor may appeal from such the order ~~within thirty days from the entry thereof~~ in the manner prescribed for appeals in civil actions except that the receiver or assignee may file ~~his~~ a notice and undertaking with the clerk without other service thereof. The receiver or assignee shall be discharged of ~~his~~ the trust and ~~his~~ the bond canceled upon compliance with the final order of the court.

NOTE: Section 128.20 (2), stats., is amended by repealing the appeal deadline of 30 days from entry for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 28. 186.29 (5) of the statutes is amended to read:

186.29 (5) ADJUSTMENT OF LOANS AND WITHDRAWAL VALUE OF SHARES. The value of shares pledged upon a loan to the credit union shall be applied and credited to the loan and the borrower shall be liable only for the balance. The rate of interest charged upon the balance shall be the legal rate. The value shall be determined in such manner as the commissioner prescribes, and shall be made under s. 186.30 (1) and (3), or in such other manner as the commissioner may prescribe. Upon the approval of the value by the commissioner and the circuit court of the county in which the credit union is located, the book value of each member shall be reduced proportionately. At least 5 days' written notice of the determination of value shall be given to all shareholders of the time and place the value shall be submitted to the circuit court for approval. ~~Should any Approval of the circuit court shall be by an order entered under s. 807.11 (2). Any stockholder or creditor of such the credit union feel aggrieved by the determination of value, he or she may at any time within 15 days after the mailing of a notice by the commissioner, addressed to the last known address of the party, giving notice of the determination and value of the shares, appeal to the court of appeals.~~

NOTE: The last sentence of s. 186.29 (5), stats., is amended by repealing the appeal deadline of 15 days after the mailing of notice for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 29. 215.32 (12) (b) and (d) of the statutes are amended to read:

215.32 (12) (b) Upon the approval of such the determined value by the commissioner and the circuit court, the withdrawal value of each savings account shall be depreciated proportionately. The commissioner shall give each member or saver at least 5 days' written notice of such the determination of value and of the time and place such value of the savings accounts will be submitted to the circuit court for approval. Approval of the circuit court shall be by an order entered under s. 807.11 (2).

(d) ~~Should any~~ Any member, saver or creditor feel aggrieved by ~~such the~~ the determination of value, ~~such person may within 15 days after the mailing of the notice under par-~~ such person may within 15 days after the mailing of the notice under par- ~~(e),~~ appeal to the court of appeals.

NOTE: Section 215.32 (12) (d), stats., is amended by repealing the appeal deadline of 15 days after the mailing of notice for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 30. 227.21 of the statutes is amended to read:

227.21 Appeals. Any party, including the agency, may secure a review of the final judgment of the circuit court by appeal to the court of appeals. ~~Such appeal shall be taken in the manner provided by law for appeals from the circuit court in other civil cases, except that the time for appeal shall be limited to 30 days from the notice of entry of the judgment within the time period specified in s. 808.04 (1).~~

NOTE: This section is amended by repealing the appeal deadline of 30 days from notice of entry of judgment for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

This section is further amended to eliminate the superfluous provision that the appeal is taken in the manner of other civil appeals. Civil appeal procedures are governed by chs. 808 and 809, stats.

SECTION 31. 227.25 of the statutes is amended to read:

227.25 Certification of certain cases from the circuit court of Dane county to other circuits. Any action or proceeding for the review of any order of an administrative officer, commission, department or other administrative tribunal of the state required by law to be instituted in or taken to the circuit court of Dane county except an action or appeal for the review of any order of the department of industry, labor and human relations or findings and orders of the labor and industry review commission which is instituted or taken and is not called for trial or hearing within 6 months after ~~such the~~ the proceeding or action is instituted, and the trial or hearing of which is not continued by stipulation of the parties or by order of the court for cause shown, shall on the application of either party on 5 days' written notice to the other be certified and transmitted for trial to the circuit court of the county of the residence or principal place of business of the plaintiff or petitioner, where ~~such the~~ the action or proceeding shall ~~have precedence over all ordinary civil actions~~ be given preference. Unless written objection is filed within ~~such the~~ the 5-day period, the order certifying and transmitting ~~such the~~ the proceeding shall be entered without hearing. The plaintiff or petitioner shall pay to the clerk of the circuit court of Dane county a fee of \$2 for transmitting the record.

NOTE: The provision regarding preferential court treatment is harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 32. 227.26 of the statutes is amended to read:

227.26 Jurisdiction of state courts to determine validity of laws when attacked in federal court and to stay enforcement. Whenever a suit praying for an interlocutory injunction shall have been begun in a federal district court to restrain any department, board, commission or officer from enforcing or administering any statute or administrative order of this state, or to set aside or enjoin the suit or administrative order, the department, board, commission or officer, or the attorney general, may bring a suit to enforce the statute or order in the circuit court of Dane county at any time before the hearing on the application for an interlocutory injunction in the suit in the federal court. Jurisdiction is hereby conferred upon the circuit court of Dane county and on the court of appeals, on appeal, to entertain the suit with the powers granted in this section. The circuit court shall, when the suit is brought, grant a stay of proceedings by any state department, board, commission or officer under the statute or order pending the determination of the suit in the courts of the state. The circuit court of Dane county upon the bringing of the

suit therein shall at once cause a notice thereof, together with a copy of the stay order by it granted, to be sent to the federal district court in which the action was originally begun. An appeal may shall be taken within ~~10 days after the termination of the suit in the circuit court to the court of appeals, and the time period specified in s. 808.04 (2).~~ The appeal shall be in every way expedited and set for an early hearing given preference.

NOTE: This section is amended to replace the appeal deadline of 10 days after termination of the suit by the time provisions of s. 808.04 (2), stats., for greater uniformity. Section 808.04 (2), stats., provides that an appeal must be initiated within 15 days of entry of judgment or order appealed from. The provision requiring preferential court treatment is harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 33. 779.29 of the statutes is amended to read:

779.29 (title) Intervention. In an action for the enforcement of a lien upon property under s. 779.18 a person not a party may, at any time before sale of the property upon which a lien is claimed, become a party defendant by filing with the clerk of the court where the action is pending an affidavit made in behalf of or by the person that the person is the owner of or of some interest in the property upon which a lien is claimed and ~~verily~~ believes that ~~said~~ the claim for lien is invalid; ~~upon~~. Upon filing this affidavit the person may defend this action so far as a claim for a lien is concerned, ~~and in case. If~~ judgment has been previously rendered for a lien, the person may appeal move the court for relief from the judgment within 20 days after the filing of the affidavit. The right to file an affidavit ~~or take an appeal~~ shall not extend beyond one year from the rendition of the judgment.

NOTE: This section is amended by repealing an appeal procedure and substituting the right to move the trial court for relief from its judgment.

SECTION 34. 779.30 of the statutes is amended to read:

779.30 (title) Undertaking by intervenor; procedure. ~~An appeal~~ The filing of an affidavit under s. 779.29 shall not stay execution unless the appellant intervenor files an undertaking, with 2 or more sureties, who shall each justify in a sum equal to double the amount of the judgment, conditioned that if the plaintiff establishes the right to a lien on ~~such~~ the property they will pay the amount of judgment in the plaintiff's favor with costs; the undertaking shall be approved by the judge of the court ~~to which the appeal is taken;~~ and upon filing it all proceedings upon the judgment ~~appealed from~~ shall be stayed during the pendency of the appeal, ~~and in case proceedings.~~ If execution has been previously issued the same shall, upon presenting to the officer in whose custody it may be a certified copy of ~~such~~ the affidavit and undertaking ~~and certificate of the clerk of the court that an appeal has been perfected,~~ be returned, and all property in which appellant the intervenor claims an interest that may have been levied upon shall be released from ~~such~~ the levy. If upon the trial ~~in the appellate court~~ the plaintiff recovers judgment of lien upon this property the judgment may be entered against the appellant intervenor and sureties; but if the plaintiff does not establish the right to a lien the appellant intervenor shall recover judgment for costs.

NOTE: See the NOTE to s. 779.29.

SECTION 35. 805.15 (6) of the statutes is amended to read:

805.15 (6) EXCESSIVE OR INADEQUATE VERDICTS. If a trial court determines that a verdict is excessive or inadequate, not due to perversity or prejudice or as a result of error during trial (other than an error as to damages), the court shall determine the amount which as a matter of law is reasonable, and shall order a new trial on the issue of damages, unless within 10 days the party to whom the option is offered elects to accept judgment in the changed amount. ~~If the option is not accepted, the order for new trial shall be deemed final for purposes of appeal~~ time period for petitioning the court of appeals

for leave to appeal the order for a new trial under ss. 808.03 (2) and 809.50 commences on the last day of the option period.

NOTE: Section 805.15 (6), stats., is amended to codify the holding of *Wick v. Mueller*, 105 Wis. 2d 191, 313 N.W. 2d 749 (1982) that orders for new trials under this subsection are not appealable as of right and that the time period for seeking leave to appeal under ss. 808.03 (2) and 809.50, stats., is computed from the last day of the option period set forth in the trial court's order.

SECTION 36. 808.04 (2) (a) of the statutes is repealed.

SECTION 37. 808.04 (2) (b) and (c) of the statutes are renumbered 808.04 (5) and (6).

SECTION 38. 808.04 (2) to (4) of the statutes are created to read:

808.04 (2) An appeal under s. 9.10 (4) (a), 227.26 or 799.445 (1) shall be initiated within 15 days after entry of judgment or order appealed from.

(3) Except as provided in sub. (4) or s. 48.911, an appeal in a criminal case or under ch. 48, 51 or 55 shall be initiated within the time period specified in s. 809.30.

(4) An appeal by the state in a criminal case under s. 974.05 or a case under ch. 48, except adoption appeals under s. 48.911, shall be initiated within 45 days of entry of judgment or order appealed from.

NOTE: Section 808.04 (2), stats., requires expedited initiation of appeals in recall and eviction cases as well as cases in which the validity of a state law is attacked in federal district court. Section 808.04 (3), stats., references the appeal deadline for criminal, juvenile, mental commitment and protective placement appeals. Section 808.04 (4), stats., references the appeal deadline for appeals by the state in criminal and children's code cases.

SECTION 39. 808.07 (7) of the statutes is renumbered 799.445 and amended to read:

799.445 (title) Appeal. ~~In all eviction actions except those tried to a jury of 12, the time for service and filing of the notice of appeal is limited to 10 days after mailing of notice of entry of judgment~~ An appeal in an eviction action shall be initiated within 15 days of the entry of judgment or order as specified in s. 808.04 (2). No such appeal by a defendant may stay proceedings on the judgment unless the appellant serves and files with the notice of appeal an undertaking to the plaintiff, in an amount and with surety approved by the judge who ordered the entry of judgment, to the effect that the appellant will pay all costs and disbursements of the appeal which may be taxed against the appellant, obey the order of the appellate court upon the appeal and pay all rent and other damages accruing to the plaintiff during the pendency of the appeal. Upon service and filing of this undertaking, all further proceedings in enforcement of the judgment appealed from are stayed pending the determination of the appeal. Upon service by the appellant of a copy of the notice and appeal and approved undertaking upon the sheriff holding an issued but unexecuted writ of restitution or of execution, the sheriff shall promptly cease all further proceedings thereon pending the determination of the appeal.

NOTE: This section is renumbered from s. 808.07 (7), stats., and amended to replace the appeal deadline of 10 days after mailing notice of entry of judgment by the time period specified in s. 808.04 (2), stats., for greater uniformity. The appeal deadline established by that statute applies regardless of whether the action has been tried to a 12-person jury.

SECTION 40. 879.27 (3) of the statutes is repealed.

NOTE: Section 879.27, stats., providing an appeal deadline of 60 days from entry of order or judgment in probate proceedings, has been repealed for greater uniformity. An appeal must be initiated within the time period specified in s. 808.04 (1), stats.

SECTION 41. 879.31 of the statutes is repealed and recreated to read:

879.31 Relief from judgment or order. On motion, notice to adverse parties and hearing, the court may relieve a party or legal representative from a judgment or orders of the court or the party's stipulation as provided in s. 806.07.

NOTE: This section formerly allowed the trial court discretion to extend the appeal deadline and is repealed for greater uniformity and consistency. The new statute allows aggrieved persons who cannot appeal to move the trial court for relief from the judgment and empowers the probate court to grant such relief as in other civil actions and proceedings.

SECTION 42. 944.25 (8) (c) of the statutes is amended to read:

944.25 (8) (c) If the court, ~~pursuant to~~ under sub. (4), finds probable cause to believe the exhibited material to be harmful to minors, and so endorses the complaint, the court may, upon the motion of the attorney general or the district attorney, issue a temporary restraining order against any respondent prohibiting him or her from selling, commercially distributing or exhibiting or giving away ~~such the~~ the material to minors or from permitting minors to inspect ~~such the~~ the material. No temporary restraining order ~~shall~~ may be granted without notice to the respondents unless it clearly appears from specific facts shown by affidavit or by the verified complaint that one or more of the respondents are engaged in the sale or exhibition of harmful material to minors and that immediate and irreparable injury to the morals and general welfare of minors in this state will result before notice can be served and a hearing had thereon. Every temporary restraining order shall be endorsed with the date and hour of issuance; shall be filed forthwith in the clerk's office and entered of record; shall define the injury and state why it is irreparable and why the order was granted without notice; and shall expire by its own terms within such time after entry, not to exceed 3 days, as the court fixes unless within the time so fixed the respondent against whom the order is directed consents that it may be extended for a longer period. If a restraining order is granted without notice, a motion for a preliminary injunction shall be set down for hearing within 2 days after the granting of ~~such the~~ the order and shall ~~take precedence over all matters except older matters of the same character; and when~~ be given preference. When the motion comes on for hearing, the attorney general or the district attorney shall proceed with the application for a preliminary injunction and, if he or she does not do so, the court shall dissolve the temporary restraining order.

NOTE: The provision in s. 944.25 (8) (c), stats., regarding preferential court treatment is harmonized and standardized with similar provisions in the statutes.

SECTION 43. 971.08 (2) of the statutes is repealed.

NOTE: Section 971.08 (2), stats., providing a 120-day time limit for withdrawing a guilty plea or a plea of no contest after conviction, is repealed as unnecessary. Withdrawal of a guilty plea or plea of no contest may be sought by postconviction motion under s. 809.30 (1) (f), stats., or under s. 974.06, stats.

SECTION 44. 974.02 (title) and (1) of the statutes are amended to read:

974.02 (title) Appeals and postconviction relief in criminal cases. (1) ~~An appeal to the court of appeals by the defendant in a criminal case or a defendant, juvenile or subject individual under chs. 48, 51 and 55 or a motion for post conviction relief in a felony case must~~ A motion for postconviction relief other than under s. 974.06 by the defendant in a criminal case shall be made in the time and manner provided in ss. 809.30 and 809.40. An appeal by the defendant in a criminal case from a judgment of conviction or from an order denying a postconviction motion or from both shall be taken in the time and manner provided in ss. 808.04 (3), 809.30 and 809.40. An appeal of an order or judgment on habeas corpus remanding to custody a prisoner committed for trial under s. 970.03 must shall be taken under ss. 808.03 (2) and 809.30 809.50, with notice to the attorney general and the district attorney and opportunity for them to be heard.

NOTE: Section 974.02 (1), stats., is amended to repeal provisions relating to appeals under ch. 48, 51 or 55 cases. Those provisions have been relocated in their respective chapters for ease of reference. The subsection is also amended to clearly establish the time for bringing a postconviction motion other than under s. 974.06 and the manner for proceeding and the appeal times from a judgment of conviction, order denying a postconviction motion or both. Reference in sub. (1) to s. 809.30 is changed to s. 809.50 because the latter statute prescribes appropriate procedures for discretionary appeals while the former does not.

SECTION 45. 974.05 (1) (intro.) of the statutes is amended to read:

974.05 (1) (intro.) ~~Within 45 days of entry of the judgment or order to be appealed the~~ time period specified by s. 808.04 (4) and in the manner provided for civil appeals under chs. 808 and 809, an appeal may be taken by the state from any:

NOTE: The appeal deadline of s. 974.05 (1), stats., is not changed but is replaced by a reference to s. 808.04 (4), stats., for ease of reference.

SECTION 46. **Cross-reference changes.** In the sections of the statutes listed in Column A, the cross-references shown in Column B are changed to the cross-references shown in Column C:

(1) CIRCUIT COURTS.

A	B	C
Statute Sections	Old Cross-References	New Cross-References
32.05 (2a)	subs. (9) to (13)	subs. (9) to (12) and chs. 808 and 809
32.06 (2a)	subs. (9)(a) and (b), (10), (12) and (13)	subs. (9)(a) and (b), (10) and (12) and chs. 808 and 809
32.22 (10)	32.05 (9) to (13)	32.05 (9) to (12) and chs. 808 and 809

SECTION 47. **Initial applicability.**

(1) CIRCUIT COURTS. This act first applies to appeals from judgments and orders of the circuit court entered on the effective date of this act.

SECTION 48. **Effective date.** This act takes effect on January 1, 1984, or the day after its publication, whichever is later.
